
  

 

City and County of Swansea 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
You are invited to attend a Special Meeting of the 

 

Cabinet 
 

At: 
 

Remotely via Microsoft Teams 
 

On: 
 

Thursday, 7 January 2021 

Time: 
 

9.30 am 

Chair: Councillor Rob Stewart 
 

Membership: 
Councillors: R Francis-Davies, L S Gibbard, D H Hopkins, E J King, A S Lewis, 
C E Lloyd, J A Raynor, A H Stevens and M Thomas 
 
Also Invited: A Pugh 
 
Watch Online: http://bit.ly/3oXZxhQ 

 
Webcasting: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via 
the Council’s Internet Site. By entering the Council Chamber you are 
consenting to be filmed and the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and / or training purposes. 
 
You are welcome to speak Welsh in the meeting. 
Please inform us by noon, two working days before the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
Page No. 

1.   Apologies for Absence.  
 
2.   Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.  

 www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests 
 

 

3.   Announcements of the Leader of the Council.  
 
4.   Public Question Time.  

 Questions must be submitted in writing, no later than noon on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  Questions must relate to items on 
the agenda. Questions will be dealt with in a 10 minute period. 

 

 
5.   Councillors' Question Time.  

 Questions must be submitted in writing, no later than noon on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  Questions must relate to items on 
the agenda. 

 

 

http://bit.ly/3oXZxhQ
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests


 

 

6.   Proposed Lease of Underhill Park to Mumbles Community 
Council under the Community Asset Transfer Policy. 

1 - 5 

 
 
 

* Call In Procedure - Subject to Pre-Decision Scrutiny: This decision is exempt 
from the Authority’s Call In Procedure as “the decision has been subject to Pre-
Decision Scrutiny and there is no material change in relevant information / evidence”. 
 
** Call In Procedure - Urgency: This decision is exempt from the Authority’s Call In 
Procedure as “either the Head of Paid Service, the Section 151 Officer or the 
Monitoring Officer certifies that any delay likely to be caused by the Call In Procedure 
could seriously prejudice the Council or the Public Interest including failure to comply 
with Statutory requirements”. 

 
 
Next Meeting: Thursday, 21 January 2021 at 10.00 am 

 

 
 
Huw Evans 
Head of Democratic Services  
Monday, 21 December 2020 

Contact: Democratic Services - Tel: (01792) 636923 
 



 

 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration & Tourism 
 

Special Cabinet – 7 January 2021 

 
Proposed Lease of Underhill Park to Mumbles 

Community Council under the Community Asset 
Transfer Policy 

 

Purpose: To obtain approval to grant Mumbles Community 
Council the necessary legal interest to enable up 
to £1.7 million pounds of funding for the 
development of improved community facilities at 
Underhill Park. 
 

Policy Framework: Asset Management Plan 2017-2021  
Community Asset Transfer Policy 2017 
Creating an Active and Healthy Swansea. 
 

Consultation: Legal, Finance, Property and Access to Services.  
 
Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

 
1) The Director of Place is to negotiate and settle the terms of the 

proposed lease / appropriate agreement and to instruct the   
Chief Legal Officer to finalise the legal documentation. 

 
Report Authors: Lewis Hinds / Jamie Rewbridge 

 
Finance Officers: Jayne James / Paul Roach 

 
Legal Officer: Sally-Ann Evans 

 
Access to Services Officer: Rhian Millar 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 In November 2014 Cabinet granted approval for an Agreement for 

Construction and 125 Year lease of Underhill Park to be granted to 
Mumbles Community Association (MCA) to enable the improvement of 
facilities at Underhill Park whilst also providing Swansea Council with a 
small financial saving.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6.



 

1.2 This Agreement for Construction and Lease has been agreed and was 
completed in July 2018. 

 
1.3 Since completion of the Agreement Mumbles Community Association 

have obtained planning permission to develop improved sport and 
community facilities at the park and have also secured, in principle, circa 
£1.7 million to fund the improvements. However a large proportion of this 
funding is to come from Mumbles Community Council (MCC) who require 
a legal interest in the land to enable provision of the money. 

 
2. Proposal 
 
2.1 The Agreement for Construction and Lease between Swansea Council 

and MCA essentially gives MCA 5 years to carry out all necessary pre-
construction exercises, such as obtain planning, obtain funding and obtain 
approval of their business plan from Swansea Council amongst other 
things.  

 
2.2 Once these conditions have been met they have a further 12 months 
 to begin construction. Once construction has started it must be completed 
 within a reasonable period. Once completed they are then bound to enter 
 into a lease of the park which to very briefly summarise is at a peppercorn 
 rent, requires that the land remains as a public park, the nature of the 
 facilities provided are not altered without prior consent from Swansea 
 Council and that they maintain and run the park and associated sports 
 facility to a high standard.   
 
2.3 MCA have very nearly completed all necessary pre-construction 

conditions apart from formally obtaining appropriate funding.  
 
2.4 MCC have agreed to underwrite £1.2 million towards the project but 
 require a legal interest in the land before they can release any money 
 in order to protect their investment and to allow them  to take over  the 
 running of the park if MCA were to cease to exist at some point in the 
 future.   
 
2.5 MCA have also been granted circa £500,000 from the National Lottery 
 towards the project, but, this funding is subject to the confirmation of the 
 funding from MCC. There is a time limit on the funding from the National 
 Lottery hence the urgency of this approval.   
 
3. Property Implications 
 
3.1 MCC’s legal interest could take the form of an assignment of the lease to 
 MCA, in circumstances where it might cease to exist, or in the form  of a 
 lease and lease-back arrangement from MCC to MCA on essentially the 
 same  terms as already agreed with MCA.  
 

Page 2



 

3.2 MCC would prefer a lease and lease-back arrangement but approval is 
 sought for the Director of Place to negotiate the most appropriate terms 
 which allow funding and best protect the interests of Swansea Council.  
 
3.3 As MCA already have a completed Agreement to Lease in place, any 
 proposed documentation to agree a lease with  MCC, will be  agreed with 
 MCA before being sent to MCC for approval and completion. 
 
3.4 Any agreement entered into with MCC will be very similar to the agreement 
 already in place with MCA which appropriately protects Swansea Councils 
 interests.  
 
3.5 So, to enable the Community Council and its partners to confidently invest 
 in the facilities without fear of the useful life of those investments being cut 
 short and to give the parties involved the ability to apply for grant funding 
 for the maximum number of grants available a circa 125 year lease is 
 considered appropriate in this case.  
 
3.6 Any agreement will require the Park to remain as a public open space, 
 maintain the current facilities to a high standard, forbid any changes to the 
 current lease / licence agreements that are already in place without the 
 Local Authority’s permission and also not allow any alterations / changes 
 to the facilities at the Park without Local Authority consent.  
 
3.7 Given the above terms a peppercorn rent for the length of the term is 
 considered appropriate and to be best value given the proposed use. The 
 current use of the land makes any more financially viable use of the land 
 extremely unlikely and, even if it were possible, it would probably be 
 outweighed by the well-being benefits of the current 
 proposal.  Furthermore, the land is subject to a covenant in favour of the 
 Duke of Beaufort which restricts and development of change of use further 
 restricting any commercial value. 
 
4. Equality and Engagement Implications 
  
4.1 The Council is subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty (Wales) and 

must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
and other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 
 

Our Equality Impact Assessment process ensures that we have paid due 
regard to the above.  

 
 An EIA Screening Form has been completed with the agreed outcome 

 that a full EIA report was not required. The reasons for this were: 

Page 3



 

 
 This lease will help to improve and enhance the facility provision at 

Underhill Park and enable further development opportunities for the local 
community. There will be no change in provision or opportunity than at 
present as the Park will remain fully open to the public as it is now. Casual 
usage will not change or be adversely affected and in the long term is 
anticipated to increase.  

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report as any 

agreement to MCC will be on very similar terms as already agreed with 
MCA. 

 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1    Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Council’s Land 
 Transaction Procedure Rules set out in the constitution apply to this 
 disposal. Under s123 LGA 1972 a local authority has the power to 
 dispose of land held by it in any manner it wishes provided that the  local 
 authority achieves the best consideration that can reasonably be 
 obtained except where the disposal is for a short tenancy (less than 7 
 years) or the local authority has the consent of the Welsh Ministers.  
 Under the Council’s constitution the responsibility of determining in what 
 manner the land will be disposed of in order to obtain best consideration 
 lies with the Director of Place. 
 
 Under the General Disposal Consent (Wales) Order 2003 the Welsh 
 Ministers have issued a general consent for disposals of land under s123 
 for less than best consideration.  This allows a local authority to dispose 
 of land for less than best consideration if it considers that the disposal 
 will contribute to the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
 environmental well-being of its area and the extent of the undervalue is 
 no more than £2m.    
 
6.2   The property has not been advertised on the open market. The Council’s 
 constitution specifies that if there has been no marketing of the Land or 
 only one person has indicated an interest to purchase there can be no 
 such disposal of land except where it is determined by the Director of Place 
 or his nominee that there is only one party who could acquire the 
 interest because of the physical, legal or other characteristics of the 
 land and that it is appropriate to sell by private treaty. In this particular 
 case the land is public open space/playing fields for community use and is 
 subject to a covenant in favour of the Duke of Beaufort which restricts any 
 development or change of use, consequently the land is of limited interest 
 to the market generally. Therefore, the Director of Place is satisfied that 
 the characteristics of the land dictate that there is realistically only one 
 party in this situation who would be interested in acquiring this land on the 
 terms offered and that it is prudent and appropriate to lease without 
 advertising on the open market. 

Page 4



 

 
6.3 Any lease documentation will contain all the relevant provisions to protect 
 the Council’s interest. 
 
6.4 As the land is deemed open space, the disposal of the property was 
 previously advertised in accordance with s123 and any objections were 
 given full and proper consideration.   
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Appendices: None. 

Page 5


	Agenda
	6. Proposed Lease of Underhill Park to Mumbles Community Council under the Community Asset Transfer Policy.

